

Appropriation

FILED FEB 11 1991

SENATE FILE 165
BY HAGERLA, PATE, McLAREN, VANDE HOEF,
BORLAUG, TAYLOR, LIND, KRAMER,
HEDGE, RENSINK, TINSMAN, NYSTROM,
KERSTEN, SLIFE, RIFE, RITTMER,
and TIEDEN

Passed Senate, Date _____ Passed House, Date _____
Vote: Ayes _____ Nays _____ Vote: Ayes _____ Nays _____
Approved _____

A BILL FOR

1 An Act relating to the appropriating of moneys to the general
2 assembly and its legislative agencies for salaries, costs, and
3 expenses of the general assembly and its agencies and
4 providing effective dates.

5 BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF IOWA:

- 6
- 7
- 8
- 9
- 10
- 11
- 12
- 13
- 14
- 15
- 16
- 17
- 18
- 19
- 20
- 21

SF 165

1 Section 1. Section 2.10, subsection 5, unnumbered
2 paragraph 1, Code 1991, is amended to read as follows:

3 The director of revenue and finance shall pay, from funds
4 appropriated to the general assembly, the travel and expenses
5 of the members of the general assembly commencing with the
6 first pay period after the names of such persons are
7 officially certified. The salaries of the members of the
8 general assembly shall be paid pursuant to any of the
9 following alternative methods:

10 Sec. 2. Section 2.10, subsections 6 and 7, Code 1991, are
11 amended to read as follows:

12 6. In addition to the salaries and expenses authorized by
13 this section, members of the general assembly shall be paid,
14 from funds appropriated to the general assembly, fifty dollars
15 per day, and necessary travel and actual expenses incurred in
16 attending meetings for which per diem or expenses are
17 authorized by law for members of the general assembly who
18 serve on statutory boards, commissions, or councils,
19 including, but not limited to, those designated in sections
20 18A.5, 28B.4, 68B.10, 80B.8, 97B.8, 97D.4, 261.4, 272B.2,
21 306.6, 307D.6, 601K.54, and for standing or interim committee
22 or subcommittee meetings subject to the provisions of section
23 2.14, or when on authorized legislative business when the
24 general assembly is not in session. However, if a member of
25 the general assembly is engaged in authorized legislative
26 business at a location other than at the seat of government
27 during the time the general assembly is in session, payment
28 may be made for the actual transportation and lodging costs
29 incurred because of the business. Such per diem or expenses
30 shall be paid promptly from funds appropriated pursuant to
31 ~~section 2.12~~ to the general assembly.

32 7. If a special session of the general assembly is
33 convened, members of the general assembly shall receive, in
34 addition to their annual salaries, the sum of fifty dollars
35 per day for each day the general assembly is actually in

1 special session, and the same travel allowances and expenses
2 as authorized by this section which shall be payable from
3 funds appropriated to the general assembly. A member of the
4 general assembly shall receive the additional per diem, travel
5 allowances and expenses only for the days of attendance during
6 a special session.

7 Sec. 3. Section 2.11, Code 1991, is amended to read as
8 follows:

9 2.11 OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES -- COMPENSATION.

10 Each house of the general assembly may employ such officers
11 and employees as it ~~shall-deem~~ deems necessary for the conduct
12 of its business. The compensation of the chaplains, officers,
13 and employees of the general assembly shall be fixed by joint
14 action of the house and senate by resolution at the opening of
15 each session, or as soon thereafter as conveniently can be
16 done. Such Payment of the compensation shall be from funds
17 appropriated to the general assembly. These persons shall be
18 furnished by the state such those supplies as may be necessary
19 for the proper discharge of their duties.

20 Sec. 4. Section 2.12, Code 1991, is amended to read as
21 follows:

22 2.12 EXPENSES OF GENERAL ASSEMBLY AND LEGISLATIVE AGENCIES -
23 - BUDGETS.

24 ~~There is appropriated out of any funds in the state~~
25 ~~treasury not otherwise appropriated a sum sufficient to pay~~
26 for Beginning with the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1992, the
27 following expenses, salaries, per diems, budgets, and other
28 items shall be paid from appropriations made annually by the
29 general assembly for these purposes:

30 1. For legislative printing and all current and
31 miscellaneous expenses of the general assembly, authorized by
32 either the senate or the house, ~~and the.~~ The director of
33 revenue and finance shall issue warrants for such items of
34 expense upon requisition of the president, majority leader,
35 and secretary of the senate or the speaker and chief clerk of

1 the house.

2 ~~2. There-is-appropriated-out-of-any-funds-in-the-state~~
3 ~~treasury-not-otherwise-appropriated,-such-sums-as-are~~
4 ~~necessary,-for~~ For each house of the general assembly for the
5 payment of any unpaid expense of the general assembly incurred
6 during or in the interim between sessions of the general
7 assembly, including but not limited to salaries and necessary
8 travel and actual expenses of members, expenses of standing
9 and interim committees or subcommittees, and per diem or
10 expenses for members of the general assembly who serve on
11 statutory boards, commissions, or councils for which per diem
12 or expenses are authorized by law. The director of revenue
13 and finance shall issue warrants for such items of expense
14 upon requisition of the president, majority leader, and
15 secretary of the senate for senate ~~expense~~ expenses or the
16 speaker and chief clerk of the house for house ~~expense~~
17 expenses.

18 ~~3. There-is-appropriated-out-of-any-funds-in-the-state~~
19 ~~treasury-not-otherwise-appropriated,-such-sums-as-are~~
20 ~~necessary-for~~ For the renovation, remodeling, or preparation
21 of the legislative chambers, legislative offices, or other
22 areas or facilities used or to be used by the legislative
23 branch of government, and for the purchase of legislative
24 equipment and supplies deemed necessary to properly carry out
25 the functions of the general assembly. The director of
26 revenue and finance shall issue warrants for such items of
27 expense, whether incurred during or between sessions of the
28 general assembly, upon requisition of the president, majority
29 leader, and secretary of the senate for senate ~~expense~~
30 expenses or the speaker and chief clerk of the house for house
31 ~~expense~~ expenses.

32 ~~4. There-is-appropriated-out-of-any-funds-in-the-state~~
33 ~~treasury-not-otherwise-appropriated-such-sums-as-may-be~~
34 ~~necessary-for~~ For the fiscal year budgets of the legislative
35 service bureau, the legislative fiscal bureau, the citizens'

1 aide office, and the computer support bureau for salaries,
2 support, maintenance, and miscellaneous purposes to carry out
3 their statutory responsibilities.

4 5. The director of revenue and finance shall issue
5 warrants for salaries, support, maintenance, and miscellaneous
6 purposes upon requisition by the administrative head of each
7 statutory legislative agency. The legislative service bureau,
8 the legislative fiscal bureau, the citizens' aide office, and
9 the computer support bureau shall submit their proposed
10 budgets to the legislative council not later than September 1
11 of each year. The legislative council shall review and
12 approve the proposed budgets not later than December 1 of each
13 year. The legislative council on behalf of the general
14 assembly shall propose a budget for the general assembly for
15 the payment of expenses, salaries, per diems, and other items
16 for which the general assembly is required to pay. The
17 proposed budget shall include a budget for both houses of the
18 general assembly. The budget approved by the legislative
19 council for each of its statutory legislative agencies and its
20 proposed budget for the general assembly shall be transmitted
21 by the legislative council to the department of management on
22 or before December 1 of each year for the fiscal year
23 beginning July 1 of the following year. The department of
24 management shall submit the approved and proposed budgets
25 received from the legislative council to the governor for
26 inclusion in the governor's proposed budget for the succeeding
27 fiscal year. The approved and proposed budgets shall also be
28 submitted to the chairpersons of the committees-on joint
29 administration appropriations subcommittee. ~~The committees-on~~
30 ~~appropriations-may-allocate-from-the-funds-appropriated-by~~
31 ~~this-section-the-funds-contained-in-the-approved-budgets,-or~~
32 ~~such-other-amounts-as-specified,-pursuant-to-a-concurrent~~
33 ~~resolution-to-be-approved-by-both-houses-of-the-general~~
34 ~~assembly.--The-director-of-revenue-and-finance-shall-issue~~
35 ~~warrants-for-salaries,-support,-maintenance,-and-miscellaneous~~

1 purposes-upon-requisition-by-the-administrative-head-of-each
2 statutory-legislative-agency.--If-the-legislative-council
3 elects-to-change-the-approved-budget-for-a-legislative-agency
4 prior-to-July-1, the-legislative-council-shall-transmit-the
5 amount-of-the-budget-revision-to-the-department-of-management
6 prior-to-July-1-of-the-fiscal-year, however, if-the-general
7 assembly-approved-the-budget-it-cannot-be-changed-except
8 pursuant-to-a-concurrent-resolution-approved-by-the-general
9 assembly.

10 Sec. 5. Section 2.13, Code 1991, is amended to read as
11 follows:

12 2.13 ISSUANCE OF WARRANTS.

13 The director of revenue and finance shall also issue to
14 each officer and employee of the general assembly, during
15 legislative sessions or interim periods, upon vouchers signed
16 by the president, majority leader, and secretary of the senate
17 or the speaker and chief clerk of the house, warrants for the
18 amount due for services rendered. The warrants shall be paid
19 ~~out-of-any-moneys-in-the-treasury-not-otherwise-appropriated~~
20 from funds appropriated to the general assembly.

21 Sec. 6. Section 2.14, subsections 3 and 5, Code 1991, are
22 amended to read as follows:

23 3. Interim studies utilizing the services of the
24 legislative service bureau must be authorized by the general
25 assembly or the legislative council. A standing committee may
26 also study and draft proposed committee bills. However,
27 unless the subject matter of a study or proposed committee
28 bill has been assigned to a standing committee for study by
29 the general assembly or legislative council, the services of
30 the legislative service bureau cannot be utilized.

31 Nonlegislative members shall not serve upon any study
32 committee, unless approved by the legislative council. A
33 standing committee may hold public hearings and receive
34 testimony upon any subject matter within its jurisdiction.

35 Nonlegislative members of study committees shall be paid,

1 from funds appropriated to the general assembly, their
2 necessary travel and actual expenses incurred in attending
3 committee or subcommittee meetings for the purposes of the
4 study.

5 5. When the general assembly is not in session, a member
6 of the general assembly shall be paid, from funds appropriated
7 to the general assembly, forty dollars per day and necessary
8 travel and actual expenses incurred in attending meetings of a
9 standing committee or subcommittee of which the legislator is
10 a member in addition to regular compensation. Such These
11 compensation and expenses shall be allowed only if the member
12 attends a meeting of the committee or subcommittee for at
13 least four hours.

14 Sec. 7. Section 2.16, unnumbered paragraph 3, Code 1991,
15 is amended to read as follows:

16 The costs of carrying out the provisions of this section
17 shall be paid ~~pursuant to section 2-12~~ from funds appropriated
18 to the legislative service bureau.

19 Sec. 8. Section 2.35, unnumbered paragraph 2, Code 1991,
20 is amended to read as follows:

21 Members shall be appointed prior to the adjournment of the
22 first regular session of each general assembly and shall serve
23 for terms ending upon the convening of the following general
24 assembly or when their successors are appointed, whichever is
25 later. Vacancies shall be filled in the same manner as
26 original appointments and shall be for the remainder of the
27 unexpired term of the vacancy. The members of the committee
28 shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses incurred
29 in the performance of their duties and shall receive forty
30 dollars for each day in which engaged in the performance of
31 their duties. However, per diem compensation and expenses
32 shall not be paid when the general assembly is actually in
33 session at the seat of government. Expenses and per diem
34 shall be paid from funds appropriated ~~pursuant to section 2-12~~
35 to the general assembly.

1 Sec. 9. Section 2.43, unnumbered paragraph 3, Code 1991,
2 is amended to read as follows:

3 The costs of carrying out the provisions of this section
4 shall be paid ~~pursuant to section 2-i2~~ from funds appropriated
5 to the general assembly.

6 Sec. 10. Section 2.44, Code 1991, is amended to read as
7 follows:

8 2.44 EXPENSES OF COUNCIL AND SPECIAL INTERIM COMMITTEES.

9 Members of the legislative council shall be reimbursed for
10 actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of
11 their duties, and shall receive a per diem of forty dollars
12 for each day in which engaged in the performance of ~~such~~ those
13 duties. However, ~~such~~ per diem compensation and expenses
14 shall not be paid when the general assembly is actually in
15 session at the seat of government. ~~Such~~ The expenses and per
16 diem shall be paid ~~in the manner provided for in section 2-i2~~
17 from funds appropriated to the general assembly.

18 Members of special interim study committees which may from
19 time to time be created and members of the legislative fiscal
20 committee who are not members of the legislative council shall
21 be entitled to receive the same expenses and compensation
22 provided for the members of the legislative council. The
23 expenses and compensation shall be paid from funds
24 appropriated to the general assembly.

25 Sec. 11. Section 2.47A, subsection 2, paragraphs c and d,
26 Code 1991, are amended to read as follows:

27 c. Establish advisory bodies to the committee in areas
28 where technical expertise is not otherwise readily available
29 to the committee. Advisory body members may be reimbursed for
30 actual and necessary expenses from funds appropriated pursuant
31 ~~to section 2-i2~~ to the general assembly, but only if the
32 reimbursement is approved by the legislative council.

33 d. Compensate experts from outside state government for
34 the provision of services to the committee from funds
35 appropriated ~~pursuant to section 2-i2~~ to the general assembly,

1 but only if the compensation is approved by the legislative
2 council.

3 Sec. 12. Section 2.91, subsection 2, Code 1991, is amended
4 to read as follows:

5 2. Members shall be appointed to a term of four years
6 commencing on July 1 of the year of appointment. Vacancies
7 shall be filled in the same manner as original appointments
8 and shall be for the remainder of the unexpired term of the
9 vacancy. The members of the commission shall be reimbursed
10 for actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance
11 of their duties and shall receive forty dollars for each day
12 in which engaged in the performance of ~~such~~ those duties.
13 However, ~~such~~ per diem compensation and expenses shall not be
14 paid when the general assembly is actually in session at the
15 seat of government. Per diem and expenses of the commission
16 and its members shall be paid from funds appropriated pursuant
17 ~~to section 2.12~~ to the general assembly.

18 Sec. 13. Section 2.104, Code 1991, is amended to read as
19 follows:

20 2.104 BUDGET.

21 Expenses of the computer support bureau shall be paid upon
22 approval of the director of the bureau from funds appropriated
23 to the computer support bureau. The budget of the computer
24 support bureau for each fiscal year shall be prepared by the
25 director and submitted to the legislative council as provided
26 in section 2.12.

27 Sec. 14. Section 2A.3, Code 1991, is amended to read as
28 follows:

29 2A.3 EXPENSES.

30 Members of the commission shall serve without compensation,
31 but shall receive actual and necessary expenses, including
32 travel at the state rate. Payment shall be made from funds
33 ~~available pursuant to section 2.12; however~~ appropriated to
34 the general assembly. However, members appointed by the
35 governor shall be paid from funds appropriated to the office

1 of the governor.

2 Sec. 15. Section 18A.5, Code 1991, is amended to read as
3 follows:

4 18A.5 COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES.

5 The members of the commission shall be reimbursed for their
6 actual and necessary expenses while in attendance at any
7 meeting of the commission held at the seat of government and
8 shall be reimbursed for their expenses for going to and from
9 the seat of government to attend a meeting. Members may also
10 be eligible for compensation as provided in section 7E.6. All
11 expense moneys paid to the nonlegislative commissioners shall
12 be paid from funds appropriated to the commission. Service of
13 the director of the department of general services upon this
14 commission is an additional duty conferred by statute.

15 Legislative members of the commission shall receive payment
16 ~~pursuant to section 2:10 and section 2:12~~ from funds
17 appropriated to the general assembly.

18 Sec. 16. Section 28B.4, Code 1991, is amended to read as
19 follows:

20 28B.4 REPORT.

21 The commission shall report to the governor and to the
22 legislature general assembly within fifteen days after the
23 convening of each general assembly, and at other times as it
24 deems appropriate. Its members and the members of all
25 committees which it establishes shall be reimbursed for their
26 travel and other necessary expenses in carrying out their
27 obligations under this chapter and legislative members shall
28 be paid a per diem as specified in section 7E.6 for each day
29 in which engaged in the performance of their duties, the per
30 diem and legislators' expenses to be paid from funds
31 ~~appropriated by sections 2:10 and 2:12~~ to the general
32 assembly. Expenses of administrative officers, state
33 officials, or state employees who are members of the Iowa
34 commission on interstate co-operation or a committee appointed
35 by the commission shall be paid from funds appropriated to the

1 agencies or departments which persons represent except as may
2 otherwise be provided by the general assembly. Expenses of
3 citizen members who may be appointed to committees of the
4 commission may be paid from funds as authorized by the general
5 assembly. Expenses of the secretary or employees of the
6 secretary and support services in connection with the
7 administration of the commission shall be paid from funds
8 appropriated to the legislative service bureau unless
9 otherwise provided by the general assembly. Expenses of
10 commission members shall be paid upon approval of the
11 chairperson or the secretary of the commission.

12 Sec. 17. Section 42.5, subsection 1, paragraph d, Code
13 1991, is amended to read as follows:

14 d. Members of the commission shall receive a per diem as
15 specified in section 7E.6, travel expenses at the rate
16 provided by section 79.9, and reimbursement for other
17 necessary expenses incurred in performing their duties under
18 this section and section 42.6. The per diem and expenses
19 shall be paid from funds appropriated ~~by section 2-12~~ to the
20 general assembly.

21 Sec. 18. Section 68B.10, unnumbered paragraphs 2 and 4,
22 Code 1991, are amended to read as follows:

23 The two individuals appointed by the chief justice of the
24 supreme court shall receive a per diem as specified in section
25 7E.6 and travel expenses at the same rate as paid members of
26 interim committees for attending meetings of the ethics
27 committee. Members of the general assembly shall receive a
28 per diem as specified in section 7E.6 and travel expenses at
29 the same rate as paid members of interim committees for
30 attending meetings held when the general assembly is not in
31 session. The per diem and expenses shall be paid from funds
32 appropriated ~~by section 2-12~~ to the general assembly.

33 The ethics committees may employ independent legal counsel
34 to assist them in carrying out their duties under this chapter
35 with the approval of a committee's house when the general

1 assembly is in session and with the approval of the rules and
2 administration committee of that house when the general
3 assembly is not in session. Payment of costs for the
4 independent legal counsel shall be made from ~~section-2-12~~
5 funds appropriated to the general assembly.

6 Sec. 19. Section 80B.8, Code 1991, is amended to read as
7 follows:

8 80B.8 COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES.

9 The members of the council, who are not employees of the
10 state or a political subdivision, shall be paid a per diem as
11 specified in section 7E.6. All members of the council shall
12 be reimbursed for necessary and actual expenses incurred in
13 attending meetings and in the performance of their duties.
14 All per diem and expense moneys paid to nonlegislative members
15 shall be paid from funds appropriated to the Iowa law
16 enforcement academy. Legislative members of the council shall
17 receive payment ~~pursuant-to-section-2-10-and-section-2-12~~ from
18 funds appropriated to the general assembly.

19 Sec. 20. Section 97B.8, unnumbered paragraph 3, Code 1991,
20 is amended to read as follows:

21 The members who are executives of a domestic life insurance
22 company, a state or national bank, and a major industrial
23 corporation, and the member who is a retired member of the
24 system, shall be paid their actual expenses incurred in
25 performance of their duties and shall receive in addition
26 forty dollars for each day of service not exceeding forty days
27 per year. Legislative members shall receive forty dollars for
28 each day of service and their actual expenses incurred in the
29 performance of their duties. The per diem and expenses of the
30 legislative members shall be paid from funds appropriated
31 ~~under-section-2-12~~ to the general assembly. The members who
32 are active members of the system and the director of the
33 department shall be paid their actual expenses incurred in the
34 performance of their duties as members of the board and
35 performance of their duties as members of the board shall not

1 affect their salaries, vacations, or leaves of absence for
2 sickness or injury. The appointive terms of the members
3 appointed by the governor are for a period of six years
4 beginning and ending as provided in section 69.19. If there
5 is a vacancy in the membership of the board, the governor has
6 the power of appointment. Appointees to this board are
7 subject to confirmation by the senate.

8 Sec. 21. Section 97D.4, subsections 2 and 4, Code 1991,
9 are amended to read as follows:

10 2. The members of the committee shall be reimbursed for
11 actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of
12 their duties and shall be paid a per diem as specified in
13 section 7E.6 for each day in which they engaged in the
14 performance of their duties. However, per diem compensation
15 and expenses shall not be paid when the general assembly is
16 actually in session at the seat of government. Expenses and
17 per diem shall be paid from funds appropriated pursuant to
18 section-2-i2 to the general assembly.

19 4. The committee may contract for actuarial assistance
20 deemed necessary, and the costs of actuarial studies are
21 payable from funds appropriated in-section-2-i2 to the general
22 assembly, subject to the approval of the legislative council.
23 The committee may administer oaths, issue subpoenas, and cite
24 for contempt with the approval of the general assembly when
25 the general assembly is in session and with the approval of
26 the legislative council when the general assembly is not in
27 session.

28 Administrative assistance shall be provided by the
29 legislative service bureau and the legislative fiscal bureau.

30 Sec. 22. Section 261.4, Code 1991, is amended to read as
31 follows:

32 261.4 FUNDS -- COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES OF COMMISSION.

33 The director of revenue and finance shall keep an
34 accounting of all funds received and expended by the
35 commission. The members of the commission, except those

1 members who are employees of the state, shall be paid a per
2 diem as specified in section 7E.6 and shall be reimbursed for
3 actual and necessary expenses. All per diem and expense
4 moneys paid to nonlegislative members shall be paid from funds
5 appropriated to the commission. Legislative members of the
6 commission shall receive payment ~~pursuant to section 2-10 and~~
7 section 2-12 from funds appropriated to the general assembly.

8 Sec. 23. Section 272B.2, Code 1991, is amended to read as
9 follows:

10 272B.2 EDUCATION COMMISSION OF THE STATES.

11 Article III, paragraph 1, of the compact notwithstanding,
12 the members of the education commission of the states
13 representing this state consist of the governor, two
14 nonlegislative members appointed by the governor, two members
15 of the senate appointed by the majority leader of the senate,
16 and two members of the house of representatives appointed by
17 the speaker of the house of representatives. The members
18 shall serve four-year terms. Nonlegislative members shall
19 serve on the education commission of the states without
20 compensation, but shall receive their actual and necessary
21 expenses and travel. Legislative members shall receive actual
22 and necessary expenses and travel ~~pursuant to sections 2-10~~
23 and 2-12 from funds appropriated to the general assembly.

24 Vacancies on the commission shall be filled for the unexpired
25 portion of the term in the same manner as the original
26 appointments. If a member ceases to be a member of the
27 general assembly, the member shall no longer serve as a member
28 of the education commission of the states.

29 Sec. 24. Section 306.6, subsection 2, unnumbered paragraph
30 1, Code 1991, is amended to read as follows:

31 A state functional classification review board is created,
32 consisting of one state senator appointed by the president of
33 the senate, after consultation with the majority leader and
34 the minority leader of the senate, one state representative
35 appointed by the speaker of the house of representatives, one

1 supervisor appointed by the Iowa state association of county
2 supervisors, one engineer appointed by the Iowa county
3 engineers' association, two persons appointed by the league of
4 Iowa municipalities, one of whom shall be a licensed
5 professional engineer, and two persons appointed by the
6 department, one of whom shall be a commissioner and the other
7 a staff member. This board shall select a permanent
8 chairperson from among its members by majority vote of the
9 total membership. Except as otherwise provided, the members
10 of the board shall serve without additional compensation to
11 the salary and expenses authorized for the office or position
12 held by the member. The supervisor appointed by the Iowa
13 state association of county supervisors, the engineer
14 appointed by the Iowa county engineers' association, and the
15 two persons appointed by the league of Iowa municipalities
16 shall be reimbursed for their actual and necessary expenses
17 incurred in the performance of their official duties as
18 members of the board from funds allocated under section 312.2,
19 subsection 12. The legislative members shall be paid for
20 their actual and necessary expenses and, when the general
21 assembly is not in session, per diem ~~as provided in sections~~
22 2:10 and 2:12 from funds appropriated to the general assembly.
23 The department's members of the board shall be reimbursed for
24 their actual and necessary expenses from the funds
25 appropriated pursuant to section 313.5.

26 Sec. 25. Section 307D.6, Code 1991, is amended to read as
27 follows:

28 307D.6 MEETINGS OF THE BOARD -- EXPENSES.

29 The board shall meet at least six times each year and shall
30 hold special meetings on the call of the chairperson. Except
31 as otherwise provided, the members of the board shall serve
32 without additional compensation to the salary and expenses
33 authorized for the office or position held by the member.
34 Members representing political subdivisions who are not
35 elected officials shall receive necessary and actual expenses

1 incurred in the performance of their duties from the funds
2 appropriated to the department from the primary road fund.
3 Legislative members shall be paid for their actual and
4 necessary expenses and, when the general assembly is not in
5 session, per diem ~~as provided in sections 2-10 and 2-12~~ from
6 funds appropriated to the general assembly. The department's
7 members of the board shall be reimbursed for their actual and
8 necessary expenses from the funds appropriated pursuant to
9 section 313.5.

10 Sec. 26. Section 601K.54, Code 1991, is amended to read as
11 follows:

12 601K.54 MEETINGS OF THE COMMISSION.

13 The commission shall meet at least six times each year, and
14 shall hold special meetings on the call of the chairperson.

15 The commission shall adopt rules pursuant to chapter 17A as it
16 deems necessary for the commission and division. The members
17 of the commission shall receive a per diem as specified in
18 section 7E.6 and be reimbursed for actual expenses while
19 engaged in their official duties. Legislative members of the
20 commission shall receive payment ~~pursuant to sections 2-10 and~~
21 ~~2-12~~ from funds appropriated to the general assembly.

22 Sec. 27. Section 502.1514, subsection 3, Code 1991, is
23 amended to read as follows:

24 3. Members of the commission shall serve without
25 compensation, but shall receive actual and necessary expenses,
26 including travel at the state rate. Payment shall be made
27 from funds ~~available pursuant to section 2-12; however~~
28 appropriated to the general assembly. However, members
29 appointed by the governor shall be paid from funds
30 appropriated to the office of the governor.

31 Sec. 28. Section 4 of this Act is effective July 1, 1991,
32 for purposes of preparing budgets for the fiscal year
33 beginning July 1, 1992.

34 Sec. 29. Sections 1, 2, 3, and 5 through 27 of this Act
35 are effective July 1, 1992.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35

EXPLANATION

The bill requires for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1992, and succeeding fiscal years the general assembly to make annual appropriations for the expenses of the general assembly, its legislative agencies, and for other items for which the general assembly is required to pay.